

THE FLEET TOWN COUNCIL NOTICE OF MEETING

Notice is hereby given of

THE MEETING OF THE ESTABLISHMENT COMMITTEE

Wednesday 12th March 2025 at 7pm in The Harlington – Function Room

All members are summoned to attend

To Councillors: P. Einchcomb, L. Holt, E. May, R. Robinson, R. Schofield, S. Tilley,

P. Wildsmith, G. Woods

RECTIONS

Rita Tong, Executive Officer 5th March 2025

AGENDA

1. APOLOGIES

Schedule 12 of the LGA 1972 requires a record to be kept of members present, and that this record forms part of the minutes of the meeting. A resolution must be passed on whether the reason(s) for a member's absence are acceptable.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Under the Local Authorities Localism Act 2011, members must declare any interest and the nature of that interest, which they may have in any of the items under consideration at this meeting.

Members are reminded that they must disclose both the existence and the nature of a personal interest that they have in any matter to be considered at this meeting. A personal interest will be considered a prejudicial interest if this is one in which a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the members' judgement of the public interest.

3. QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC (3 min per person maximum 15 minutes) To receive questions and statements from members of the public.

4. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

To approve and sign as a correct record the main minutes and the confidential minutes of the last meeting held on 13th November 2025 (*copies attached*).

Part 1 - ITEMS FOR DECISION

5. DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURE

The Disciplinary Policy was reviewed in November 2024 where it was identified that amendments to the Council's Standing Orders would also be required to ensure delegated authorities were appropriately reflected (refer minute EST NOV 24 ITEM 6).

Accordingly, the following has been provided for Members to review:

- a) The proposed Disciplinary Policy
- b) The proposed Disciplinary Procedures.

c) The proposed Standing Order amendments (in red)

RECOMMENDATION

To approve the amended Disciplinary Policy, Disciplinary Procedure and Standing Orders.

Part 2 – ITEMS TO NOTE

6. TRAINING UPDATE

Members to note training received by Officers since the last Establishment Committee meeting.

7. STAFFING UPDATES

Members to note staffing updates since the previous Establishment Committee meeting.

8. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

The next meeting of the Establishment Committee is scheduled to be held on Wednesday 9th July 2025 at 7pm in The Harlington (Music Room).

Part 3 - CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS FOR DECISION

Under the Public Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 1960 Exclusion of the public in accordance with Section 1(2) and by reason of the confidential nature of the business of the Town Council, the Public and Press will be excluded from the Meeting.

The following types of business will be treated as confidential:

- a. Matters relating to individual staff, engagement, terms of service, conduct and dismissal of employees
- b. Terms of tenders, and proposals and counter-proposals in negotiations for contracts
- c. Receipt of professional legal advice and preparation of cases in legal proceedings
- d. The early stages of any dispute
- e. Matters of a commercial nature

9. STAFF SALARY RECOMMENDATIONS FOR 2025/26

To receive the Executive Officer's recommendations for salary increases to take effect from 1 April 2025 (see report attached).

RECOMMENDATION

To agree staff salaries for the year beginning 1 April 2025.

10. STAFF ASSISTANCE

To receive a report regarding a request to provide assistance to a staff member.

RECOMMENDATION

To consider the report and determine what, if any, assistance the Council can provide.



FLEET TOWN COUNCIL

MINUTES OF THE ESTABLISHMENT COMMITTEE MEETING

held on

Wednesday 13th November 2024 at 7pm

* Councillor Woods (Chairman)
* Councillor Einchcomb (Vice Chairman)

* Councillor Holt

Councillor May

0 Councillor Robinson

* Councillor Schofield

* Councillor Tilley

Councillor Wildsmith

* Present # Absent & No Apology Received 0 Apology for Absence L Late

Also in attendance:

Rita Tong – Executive Officer

EST NOVEMBER 2024 ITEM 1 APOLOGIES

Members received and accepted the apologies as noted above.

EST NOVEMBER 2024 ITEM 2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

EST NOVEMBER 2024 ITEM 3 QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

There were no members of the public present.

EST NOVEMBER 2024 ITEM 4 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the Establishment Committee meeting held on 10th July 2024 were approved and signed by the Chairman.

EST NOVEMBER 2024 ITEM 5 ALCOHOL AND SUBSTANCE MISUSE POLICY

Members reviewed the draft Alcohol and Substance Misuse Policy and the draft Alcohol and Substance Misuse Procedures. Members proposed several amendments to both documents.

RESOLVED

Members approved the amended Alcohol & Substance Misuse Policy and Alcohol & Substance Procedure subject to the changes proposed.

EST NOVEMBER 2024 ITEM 6

DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURE

Members reviewed the draft Disciplinary Policy and the draft Disciplinary Procedures. Members proposed several amendments to both documents.

Councillor Schofield advised that amendments would be required to Standing Orders for the disciplinary procedure to operate as intended.

RESOLVED

Members agreed that Cllr Schofield, Cllr Woods and the Executive Officer review Standing Orders alongside the proposed amended Disciplinary Policy and Disciplinary Procedure documents and come back to this Committee with recommendations for required changes.

EST NOVEMBER 2024 ITEM 7 EQUALITY & DIVERSITY POLICY

Members reviewed the Equality & Diversity Policy and made proposed some minor amendments.

RESOLVED

Members approved the amended Equality & Diversity Policy subject to the proposed amendments..

EST NOVEMBER 2024 ITEM 8 TRAINING UPDATE

Members noted training received by Officers since the last Establishment Committee meeting.

EST NOVEMBER 2024 ITEM 9 STAFFING UPDATES

Members noted staffing updates since the previous Establishment Committee meeting.

EST NOVEMBER 2024 ITEM 10 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

The next meeting of the Establishment Committee is scheduled to be held on Wednesday 26th February 2025 at 7pm in The Harlington (Music Room).

Part 3 CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS

The Chairman stated the reasons that the remainder of the meeting should be held in confidential session is due to matters relating to individual staff and terms of service being discussed.

RESOLVED

That subject to the Public Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 1960 Exclusion of the public in accordance with Section 1(2) and by reason of the confidential nature of the business of the Town Council, the Public and Press will be excluded from the Meeting.

EST NOVEMBER 2024 ITEM 11 STAFF APPRAISALS UPDATE

Members received a summary update on staff process towards the current year appraisal objectives.

RESOLVED

Members noted the staff appraisal update.

EST NOVEMBER 2024 ITEM 12 STAFF SALARY BUDGET FOR

STAFF SALARY BUDGET FOR 2025/26 FINANCIAL YEAR

Members received the impact of draft payroll scenarios on next year's budget and after discussion agreed the recommended salary budget for inclusion in next year's budget.

RESOLVED

Members agreed to make a recommendation of a 5% average increase to base staff salaries to Council regarding the staff salaries budget for next financial year.

Signed: Date.....

Chairman

The meeting closed at 8.39pm.



Disciplinary Policy

Policy and Finance Approved: April 2015
Last Reviewed: February 2025
Due for Next Review: February 2028

Policy

The Council aims to ensure that all disciplinary matters will be dealt with in a prompt, fair and proportionate manner generally in accordance with ACAS procedures.



Disciplinary Procedure

Policy and Finance Approved: April 2015
Last Reviewed: February 2025
Due for Next Review: February 2028

Procedure

Breaches of Council policy and procedures requiring disciplinary action will be graded from minor through to gross misconduct. The means of dealing with these failures will be proportionate as set out below.

1 Minor faults

1.1 Definition

A minor fault is a low-level breach of council policy or procedure that does not result in significant harm, risk, or disruption to colleagues, the public, or council operations. It is typically an isolated incident or an error due to oversight rather than deliberate misconduct.

1.2 Examples

The following list contains some examples of minor faults. This list is not to be regarded as exclusive or exhaustive:

- Failure to follow an administrative process correctly (e.g., not completing a required form on time).
- Occasional lateness without prior notice.
- Minor breaches of dress code or professional standards.
- Inadvertent failure to follow minor aspects of health and safety guidance (where no risk or harm has occurred).
- Using a work phone for occasional personal use, provided it does not interfere with duties.

1.3 How Dealt With

Minor faults will be dealt with informally. Informally means addressing minor faults through non-punitive, constructive measures rather than formal disciplinary action. These measures include giving verbal guidance, coaching & support and reminders of expectations.

In most instances, minor faults will be dealt with by the employee's line manager.

2 Misconduct

2.1 Definition

Misconduct refers to breaches of council policies, procedures, or expected standards of behaviour that negatively impact the council's operations, reputation, or working environment. While more serious than a minor fault, misconduct does not involve significant harm, dishonesty, or unlawful acts. It may result from repeated minor faults or a single, more significant lapse in conduct and typically warrants formal disciplinary action but not summary dismissal.

2.2 Examples

The following list contains some examples of misconduct. This list is not to be regarded as exclusive or exhaustive:

- unauthorised absence:
- poor timekeeping;
- unsatisfactory work performance (either repeated instances of poor work or one piece of very poor work);
- not working co-operatively and positively as a member of a team;
- failure to preserve the dignity, respect and privacy of others or behaviour that would breach the harmony in the workplace;
- misuse of the Council's resources and facilities including telephone, email and internet:
- inappropriate behaviour;
- · failure to follow reasonable instructions;
- breach of health and safety rules;
- impropriety or disorderly conduct whether within or outside working hours which the Council reasonably considers to be detrimental to the Council;
- failure to disclose a personal interest;
- unsatisfactory manner or/and appearance;
- any act or omission which, after investigation and due consideration to the individual circumstances is believed to amount to misconduct.

2.3 How Dealt With

The Executive Officer may personally investigate the matter or, where deemed appropriate, appoint an investigator.

The investigator will conduct an investigation without unnecessary delay. The nature and extent of the investigation will depend on the seriousness of the matter. This may include interviews with the employee concerned and third parties such as witnesses, colleagues, and managers, as well as reviewing relevant written records and information. In certain circumstances, where there is reasonable cause and in accordance with council policy, a search of council-owned property (e.g., desks, lockers, IT equipment) may be conducted. Searches of an employee's personal property will only be carried out with their consent.

At the conclusion of the investigation, a report will be written and a copy given to the employee. The investigator's report will contain recommendations and the findings on which they were based. The investigator will recommend either:

- the employee has no case to answer and there should be no further action under the Council's disciplinary procedure;
- the matter is not serious enough to justify further use of the disciplinary procedure and can be dealt with informally or;
- the employee has a case to answer and the matter should proceed to the Council's disciplinary procedure

3 Gross misconduct

3.1 Definition

Gross misconduct refers to serious breaches of conduct, policies, or ethical standards that fundamentally damage the employment relationship and may justify immediate dismissal without notice. It includes actions that involve dishonesty, serious negligence, or behaviour that significantly undermines the council's operations, reputation, safety, or legal obligations. Such acts create substantial harm, risk, or liability, making continued employment untenable.

3.2 Examples

The following list contains some examples of gross misconduct. This list is not to be regarded as exclusive or exhaustive.

- intentionally making false statements when incidents or accidents are being investigated, or when applying for employment or in connection with medical examination:
- bullying, discrimination and/or harassment;
- incapacity at work because of alcohol or drugs;
- violent behaviour;
- fraud or theft;
- · gross negligence;
- gross insubordination;
- · serious breaches of health and safety rules;
- serious and deliberate damage to property;
- use of the internet or email to access pornographic, obscene or offensive material;
- disclosure of confidential information;
- impropriety or disorderly conduct whether within or outside working hours which the Council reasonably considers to bring or potentially bring the Council into disrepute;
- failure to disclose a personal pecuniary interest;
- any act or omission which, after investigation and due consideration to the individual circumstances is believed to amount to gross misconduct.

3.3 How Dealt With

Step 1 - The Executive Officer will inform the Chairman of the Establishment Committee as to the details of the misconduct. The Chairman of the Establishment Committee will appoint three members of the Establishment Committee to form a Disciplinary Panel. This Disciplinary Panel will appoint an investigator.

Step 2 - The investigator will conduct an investigation without unnecessary delay. The nature and extent of the investigation will depend on the seriousness of the matter. This

may include interviews with the employee concerned and third parties such as witnesses, colleagues, and managers, as well as reviewing relevant written records and information. In certain circumstances, where there is reasonable cause and in accordance with council policy, a search of council-owned property (e.g., desks, lockers, IT equipment) may be conducted. Searches of an employee's personal property will only be carried out with their consent.

Step 3 - At the conclusion of the investigation, a report will be written and a copy given to the Disciplinary Panel and the employee. The investigator's report will contain recommendations and the findings on which they were based. The investigator will recommend either:

- the employee has no case to answer and there should be no further action under the Council's disciplinary procedure;
- the matter is not serious enough to justify further use of the Gross Misconduct disciplinary procedure and can be dealt with under less arduous rules. or;
- the employee has a case to answer and the matter should proceed to the Disciplinary Panel for further consideration.

Step 4 – A Disciplinary Hearing may be called based on the investigation report recommendation.

When an employee is accused of gross misconduct, the Council may suspend the employee from work with pay while it investigates the alleged offence. This will be as brief as possible, normally for no more than five working days, and the Council will explain its reasons in writing. The employee shall not attend their place of work during suspension, other than for the purpose of attending disciplinary proceedings, including investigatory interviews. The employee shall not contact any other employees or contacts of the Council, except the employees' companion, without the Councils consent.

If, on completion of the investigation and the full disciplinary procedure, the Council is satisfised that gross miscount has occurred, the result will normally be summary dismissal, i.e. dismissal without notice or pay in lieu of notice.

4 Disciplinary Hearing

An employee will be invited in writing, to a disciplinary hearing once the investigations are complete. The employee will be informed of the nature of the allegations that are to be addressed.

The Disciplinary Panel will consider the outcome of the investigation, together with the employee's representations and any other matters or further investigations it wishes to conduct before deciding on a course of action.

5 Disciplinary Action

If the Disciplinary Panel decides to take no disciplinary action, no record of the matter will be retained on the employee's personnel file and the matter will be closed.

Where the Panel decide that gross misconduct has occurred, they will issue a first written warning.

5.1 First written warning

A first written warning is issued to the employee notifying them:

- of the reason for the warning, the improvement required (if appropriate) and the time period for improvement;
- that further misconduct/failure to improve will result in more serious disciplinary action;
- the employee's right to appeal;
- a copy of the written warning will be placed on the employee's personnel file, and that the warning will remain in force for a period of six months.

5.2 Final written warning

If there is further misconduct during the period of a written warning or if the misconduct is sufficiently serious, the employee will be given a final written warning. A final written warning will set out:

- the reason for the final written warning, the improvement required (if appropriate) and the time period for improvement;
- that further misconduct/failure to improve will result in more serious disciplinary action up to and including dismissal;
- the employee's right of appeal;
- that the letter confirming the final written warning will be placed on the employee's personnel file, and that the warning will remain in force for 12 months.

5.3 Dismissal

The Disciplinary Panel may instruct instant dismissal:

- for the investigated gross misconduct;
- if there is no improvement within the specified time period following a final written warning:
- if another instance of misconduct occurs and a final written warning has already been issued and remains in force.

The Disciplinary Panel will consider very carefully a decision to dismiss. If an employee is dismissed, they will receive a written statement of the reasons for their dismissal, the date on which the employment will end and details of their right of appeal.

Action imposed as a result of the disciplinary meeting will remain in force unless and until it is modified as a result of an appeal.

6 Appeals

An employee who wishes to appeal against a disciplinary decision must do so within five working days. The Chairman of the Establishment Committee will instigate an Appeal Panel comprising three members of the Establishment Committee, not previously involved in any earlier investigations on the same disciplinary matter. Should there be insufficient independent members of the Establishment Committee, the Chairman of the Establishment Committee will invite members of the Council who have had no previous involvement in the same matter, to join the Appeal

Panel. Members of the Appeals Panel will hear all appeals and their decision is final. At the appeal any disciplinary penalty imposed will be reviewed.

If the employee wishes to appeal against a disciplinary decision, they must do so within five working days of the receipt of the disciplinary letter, The request for an appeal should be made in writing, stating the ground(s) on which the disciplinary decision should be reviewed.

Members of the Appeals Panel will hear the appeal. In the rare circumstances where the date proposed by the Appeals Panel is not agreeable to the employee, alternative arrangements will be agreed with the employee and their companion.

The appeals hearing will be normally held within 10 working days of receipt of the letter. The decision of the Appeals Panel shall be final.

7 Appeals Hearing

At the appeals hearing, the employee will be given opportunity to state the ground(s) on which the appeal is made. The chairman of the Disciplinary Panel who took the original decision will have the opportunity to explain the decision to impose the given penalty and any witnesses called to the Disciplinary Panel may be called again.

An appeal hearing is intended to focus on specific factors that the employee feels have received insufficient consideration such as:

- An inconsistent/inappropriate harsh penalty
- Extenuating circumstances
- Bias of the disciplining manager
- Unfairness of the hearing
- New evidence subsequently coming to light.

The members of the Appeals Panel may exercise discretion as to whether or not the two parties will be present together during the proceedings.

The hearing will be adjourned when all the evidence has been heard. The members of the Appeals Panel will consider the merits of the appeal, in private.

The members of the Appeals Panel will, whenever possible, verbally inform the employee of the decision reached and confirm this in writing no later than five working days after the hearing.

The members of the Appeals Panel have the authority to quash or reduce a disciplinary decision or, in exceptional and appropriate circumstances, to increase it, in accordance with the penalties specified in this disciplinary procedure.

Where an appeal against dismissal fails, the effective date of termination shall be the date on which the employee was originally dismissed.

8 Investigations against the Executive Officer

Where investigations are carried out against the Executive Officer, the Chairman of the Establishment Committee will appoint an investigator who will be responsible for undertaking the investigation.



Fleet Town Council Standing Orders May 2024

Table of Contents

1.	Meetings of Full Council and Committees	2
2.	Annual Council Meetings	4
3.	Extraordinary Meetings	5
4.	Preparation for Council Meetings	5
5.	Motions Requiring Written Notice	
6.	Motions not Requiring Written Notice	
7.	Proper Officer	
8.	Rules of Debate	7
9.	Code of Conduct (England)	9
10.	Questions	9
11.	Minutes	9
12.	Disorderly Conduct	10
13.	Rescission of Previous Resolutions	10
14.	Voting on Appointments	10
15.	Expenditure	10
	Execution of Legal Deeds	
17.	Committees	11
	Sub Committees	
	Working Groups	
	Accounts and Financial Statements	
	Estimates / Precepts	
	Canvassing of and Recommendations by Councillors	
	Inspection of Documents	
	Unauthorised Activities	
	Confidential Business	
	General Power of Competence	
	Matters Affecting Council Employees	
	Responsibilities to Provide Information	
	Management of Information	
	Responsibilities Under Data Protection Legislation	
	Freedom of Information Act 2000	
	Relations with the Press / Media	
	Liaison with District and County Councillors	
	Financial Matters	
	Allegations of Breaches of the Code of Conduct	
	Variation, Revocation and Suspension of Standing Orders	
	Standing Orders to be Given to Councillors	
	Delegation and Terms of Reference to the Planning Committee	
	Delegation and Terms of Reference to Policy and Finance Committee	
	Delegation and Terms of Reference to Recreation Leisure and Amenities Committee	
	Delegation to the Establishment Committee	
	Delegation to a Disciplinary Panel	
	Delegation to an Appeals Panel	
	Delegation to the Executive Officer	
	Delegation to The Harlington and Ancells Farm Community Centre General Manager	
40.	Councillor Training	19

1. Meetings of Full Council and Committees

- a Meetings do take place in the Harlington which is licensed for the supply of alcohol as this is the most practical venue to hold Council meetings. Alcohol however is not served in the part of the building when the meeting is taking place.
- b When calculating the 3 clear days for notice of a meeting to councillors and the public, the day on which notice was issued, the day of the meeting, a Sunday, a day of the Christmas break, a day of the Easter break or of a bank holiday or a day appointed for public thanksgiving or mourning shall not count.
- c Meetings shall be open to the public unless their presence is prejudicial to the public interest by reason of the confidential nature of the business to be transacted or for other special reasons. The public's exclusion from part or all of a meeting shall be by a resolution which shall give reasons for the public's exclusion.
- **d** Subject to standing order 1(c) above, members of the public are permitted to make representations, answer questions and give evidence in respect of any item of business included in the agenda. This will be subject to the paragraphs below and will ordinarily occur during the time set aside for public participation at the beginning of the meeting.
- **e** The period of time [which is at the Chair's discretion] OR [which is designated for public participation in accordance with standing order 1(d) above] shall not exceed 15 minutes unless the Chair wishes to use their discretion.
- f Subject to standing order 1(e) above, each member of the public is entitled to speak once only in respect of business itemised on the agenda and must hand a written copy of the question to the Executive Officer immediately before the meeting at the latest. The length of the question must not exceed 65 words. The total time for public participation shall not exceed 15 minutes.
- g In accordance with standing order 1(d) above, a question asked by a member of the public during a public participation session at a meeting shall not require a response or debate. The question will be included in the minutes.
- h In accordance with standing order 1(g) above. Questions will be answered in one of the following ways:
 - When an answer can be given immediately, the answer will be included in the first draft of the minutes.
 - When an answer requires research to be taken over a period of up to 4 weeks, the answer, as soon it is available, will be added to the draft minutes displayed on the Council website and will be included in the minutes adopted by the next following Council meeting.
 - When an answer still cannot be answered by this Council meeting then an update will be
 included at item 3 on the next and every subsequent agenda, until an answer can be
 provided and will then be included in the next available set of minutes.
- i A summary record of a public participation session at a meeting shall be included in the minutes of that meeting.
- j Any person speaking at a meeting shall address their comments to the Chair.
- **k** Only one person is permitted to speak at a time. If more than one person wishes to speak, the Chair shall direct the order of speaking.
- I A copy of the above Public Participation rules shall be placed in the public seating area at the Council meeting.

- m Subject to standing order 1(n), a person who attends a meeting is permitted to report on the meeting whilst the meeting is open to the public. To "report" means to film, photograph, make an audio recording of meeting proceedings, use any other means for enabling persons not present to see or hear the meeting as it takes place or later or to report or to provide oral or written commentary about the meeting so that the report or commentary is available as the meeting takes place or later to persons not present.
- n A person present at a meeting may not provide an oral report or oral commentary about a meeting as it takes place without permission.
- o In accordance with standing order 1(c) above, the press shall be provided reasonable facilities for the taking of their report of all or part of a meeting at which they are entitled to be present.
- p Subject to standing orders which indicate otherwise, anything authorised or required to be done by, to or before the Chair may in their absence be done by, to or before the Vice-Chair (if any).
- q The Chair, if present, shall preside at a meeting. If the Chair is absent from a meeting, the Vice-Chair, if present, shall preside. If both the Chair and the Vice-Chair are absent from a meeting, a Councillor as chosen by the Councillors present at the meeting shall preside at the meeting.
- r Subject to model standing order 1 (t) below and the meeting being quorate, all questions at a meeting shall be decided by a majority of the Councillors present and voting thereon.
- s The Chair may give an original vote on any matter put to the vote, and in the case of an equality of votes may exercise his casting vote whether or not he gave an original vote. (See also standing orders 2 (h) and (i)below.)
- t Voting on any question, with the exception of Councillor co-option, shall be by a show of hands.
 - Voting by Secret Ballot is permitted for the co-option of a Councillor.
 - At the request of a Councillor, the voting on any question shall be recorded so as to show whether each councillor present and voting gave their vote for or against that question. Such a request shall be made before moving on to the next item of business on the agenda.
- u The minutes of a meeting shall record the names of councillors present and absent also the names of officers and visiting Councillors as well as the number of members of the public.
- v The code of conduct adopted by the Council shall apply to councillors in respect of the entire meeting.
- w An interest arising from the code of conduct adopted by the Council, the existence and nature of which is required to be disclosed by a Councillor at a meeting shall be recorded in the minutes. (See also standing order 9 below.)
- x No business may be transacted at a meeting unless at least one third of the whole number of members of the Council / Committee are present and in no case shall the quorum of a meeting be less than 3.
- y If a meeting is or becomes inquorate no business shall be transacted and the meeting shall be adjourned. Any outstanding business of a meeting so adjourned shall be transacted at a following meeting.
- **z** Meetings shall not exceed a period of 3 hours.
- aa The Chair's decision as to the application of Standing Orders at meetings shall be final.
- **bb** A Councillor's failure to observe Standing Orders more than 3 times in one meeting may result in him being excluded from the meeting in accordance with Standing Order 12b.

A Councillor or non-Councillor with voting rights who has a disclosable pecuniary interest or another interest as set out in the Council's Code of Conduct in a matter being considered at a meeting is subject to statutory limitations or restrictions under the code on his right to participate and vote on that matter.

2. Annual Council Meetings

See also standing order 1 above

- a In an election year, the annual meeting of the Council shall be held on or within 14 days following the day on which the new Councillors elected take office.
- b In a year which is not an election year, the annual meeting of a Council shall be held on such day in May as the Council may direct.
- c If no other time is fixed, the annual meeting of the Council shall take place at 6pm.
- d In addition to the annual meeting of the Council, at least three other ordinary meetings shall be held in each year on such dates and times as the Council directs.
- e The election of the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Council shall be the first business completed at the annual meeting of the Council.
- f The Chair of the Council, unless they have resigned or becomes disqualified, shall continue in office and preside at the annual meeting until his successor is elected at the next annual meeting of the Council.
- g The Vice-Chair of the Council, if any, unless he resigns or becomes disqualified, shall hold office until immediately after the election of the Chair of the Council at the next annual meeting of the Council.
- h In an election year, if the current Chair of the Council has not been re-elected as a member of the Council, he shall preside at the meeting until a successor Chair of the Council has been elected. The current Chair of the Council shall not have an original vote in respect of the election of the new Chair of the Council but must give a casting vote in the case of an equality of votes.
- i In an election year, if the current Chair of the Council has been re-elected as a member of the Council, they shall preside at the meeting until a new Chair of the Council has been elected. They may exercise an original vote in respect of the election of the new Chair of the Council and must give a casting vote in the case of an equality of votes.
- Following the election of the Chair of the Council and Vice-Chair of the Council at the Annual Meeting of the Council, the order of business shall be as follows.
 - i. In an election year, delivery by Councillors of their declarations of acceptance of office.
 - ii. Confirmation of the accuracy of the minutes of the last meeting of the Council and to receive and note minutes of and/or to determine recommendations made by committees.
 - iii. Receipt of nominations to existing committees.
 - iv. Appointment of any new committees, confirmation of the terms of reference, the number of members (including, if appropriate, substitute councillors) and receipt of nominations to them.
 - v. Review and adoption of appropriate standing orders (including Review of delegation arrangements and terms of reference to committees, sub-committees, employees and other local authorities) and financial regulations in line with the requirement at SO 33b.
 - vi. Review of representation on or work with external bodies and arrangements for reporting back.
 - vii. Review of inventory of land and assets including buildings and office equipment.
 - viii. Review and confirmation of arrangements for insurance cover in respect of all insured risks.

- ix. Review of the Council's and/or employees' memberships of other bodies.
- Setting the dates, times and place of ordinary meetings of the full Council for the year ahead.

3. Extraordinary Meetings

See also standing order 1 above

- a The Chair of the Council may convene an extraordinary meeting of the Council at any time.
- b If the Chair of the Council does not or refuses to call an extraordinary meeting of the Council within 7 days of having been requested to do so by two Councillors, those two councillors may convene an extraordinary meeting of the Council. The statutory public notice giving the time, venue and agenda for such a meeting must be signed by the two Councillors.
- c The Chair of a committee (or a sub-committee) may convene an extraordinary meeting of the committee or sub-committee at any time.
- d If the Chair of a committee (or a sub-committee) does not or refuses to call an extraordinary meeting within 7 days of having been requested by to do so by 2 councillors, those 2 councillors may convene an extraordinary meeting of a committee (or a sub-committee). The statutory public notice giving the time, venue and agenda for such a meeting must be signed by 2 councillors.

4. Preparation for Council Meetings

- a Agenda items are not to be debated if there is no supporting report or it is circulated less than three days prior to the meeting.
- b Chairs should ensure that only items for which briefing papers have been circulated prior to the meeting are on the agenda.
- c No financial approvals shall be given unless all relevant financial information is circulated at least three days prior to the meeting.
- d Chairs are to assume that all briefing papers have been read.
- Members are responsible for reading all background papers prior to the meeting.

5. Motions Requiring Written Notice

- a In accordance with standing order 7(b)(iii), below no motion may be moved at a meeting unless it is included in the agenda and the mover has given written notice of its wording to the Council's Proper Officer at least 7 clear days before the next meeting.
- b The Proper Officer may, before including a motion in the agenda received in accordance with standing order 5(a) above, correct obvious grammatical or typographical errors in the wording of the motion.
- c If the Proper Officer considers the wording of a motion received in accordance with standing order 5(a) above is not clear in meaning, the motion shall be rejected until the mover of the motion resubmits it in writing to the Proper Officer in clear and certain language at least 5 clear days before the meeting.
- d If the wording or nature of a proposed motion is considered unlawful or improper, the Proper Officer shall consult with the Chair of the forthcoming meeting or, as the case may be, the Councillors who have convened the meeting, to consider whether the motion shall be included or rejected in the agenda.
- e Having consulted the Chair or councillors pursuant to standing order 5(d) above, the decision of

- the Proper Officer as to whether or not to include the motion in the agenda shall be final.
- f Notice of every motion received in accordance with the Council's standing orders shall be numbered in the order received and shall be entered in a book, which shall be open to inspection by all councillors.
- g Every motion rejected in accordance with the Council's standing orders shall be duly recorded with a note by the Proper Officer giving reasons for its rejection in a book for that purpose, which shall be open to inspection by all councillors.
- h Every motion and resolution shall relate to the Council's statutory functions, powers and lawful obligations or shall relate to an issue which specifically affects the Council's area or its residents.
- i All Submitted Motions must have a supporting report as per Standing Order 5a.

6. Motions not Requiring Written Notice

- a Motions in respect of the following matters may be moved without written notice.
 - i. To appoint a person to preside at a meeting.
 - ii. To approve the absences of Councillors.
 - iii. To approve the accuracy of the minutes of the previous meeting.
 - iv. To correct an inaccuracy in the minutes of the previous meeting.
 - v. To dispose of business, if any, remaining from the last meeting.
 - vi. To alter the order of business on the agenda for reasons of urgency or expedience.
 - vii. To proceed to the next business on the agenda.
 - viii. To close or adjourn debate.
 - ix. To refer by formal delegation a matter to a committee or an employee.
 - x. To appoint a committee, sub-committee or working group or any councillors (including substitutes) thereto.
 - xi. To receive nominations to a committee sub-committee or working group.
 - xii. To dissolve a committee, sub-committee or working group.
 - xiii. To note the minutes of a meeting of a committee sub-committee or working group.
 - xiv. To consider a report and/or recommendations made by a committee or a sub-committee or a Working Group or an employee.
 - xv. To consider a report and/or recommendations made by an employee, professional advisor, expert or consultant.
 - xvi. To authorise legal deeds signed by two councillors and witnessed.
 - (See standing orders 16 (a) and (b) below.)
 - xvii. To authorise the payment of monies up to £250.
 - xviii. To amend a motion relevant to the original or substantive motion under consideration which shall not have the effect of nullifying it.
 - xix. To extend the time limit for speeches.
 - xx. To exclude the press and public for all or part of a meeting.
 - xxi. To silence or exclude from the meeting a Councillor or a member of the public for disorderly conduct.
 - xxii. To give the consent of the Council if such consent is required by standing orders.
 - xxiii. To suspend any standing order except those which are mandatory by law.
 - xxiv. To adjourn the meeting.
- xxv. To appoint representatives to outside bodies and to make arrangements for those

representatives to report back the activities of outside bodies.

- xxvi. To answer questions from councillors.
- xxvii. To give dispensations to Councillors where appropriate (see 9)

7. Proper Officer

- a The Executive Officer shall be the Council's Proper Officer. The Executive Officer or other person duly authorised to so act during the Proper Officer's absence is appointed by the Council to undertake the role of the Proper Officer during the Proper Officer's absence. The Proper Officer or other duly authorised person appointed to act as such during the Proper Officer's absence shall fulfil the duties assigned to the Proper Officer in standing orders.
- b The Council's Proper Officer shall do the following.
 - i. Give notice to councillors confirming the time, date, venue and the agenda for a meeting by electronic delivery at least 3 clear days before a meeting provided any such email contains the electronic signature and title of the Proper Officer.
 - ii. Give public notice of the time, date, venue and agenda at least 3 clear days before a meeting of the Council or a meeting of a committee or a sub-committee (provided that the public notice with agenda of an extraordinary meeting of the Council convened by councillors is signed by them).
 - iii. Subject to standing orders 5a)–(e) above, include in the agenda all motions in the order received unless a councillor has given written notice at least 7 days before the meeting confirming his withdrawal of it.
 - iv. Convene a meeting of full Council for the election of a new Chair of the Council, occasioned by a casual vacancy in their office, in accordance with standing order 7(b)il and 7(b)il above.
 - v. Make available for inspection the minutes of meetings.
 - vi. Receive and retain copies of byelaws made by other local authorities.
 - vii. Receive and retain declarations of acceptance of office from councillors.
 - viii. Retain a copy of every councillor's register of interests and any changes to it and keep copies of the same available for inspection.
 - ix. Keep proper records required before and after meetings.
 - x. Process all requests made under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 and Data Protection legislation, in accordance with and subject to the Council's procedures relating to the same.
 - xi. Receive and send general correspondence and notices on behalf of the Council except where there is a resolution to the contrary.
 - xii. Manage the organisation, storage of and access to information held by the Council in paper and electronic form subject to the requirement of data protection, freedom of information legislation and other legitimate requirements (e.g. The Statute of Limitations Act 1980).
 - xiii. Arrange for the prompt authorisation, approval, and instruction regarding any payments to be made by the Council in accordance with the Council's financial regulations.
 - xiv. Action or undertake activity or responsibilities instructed by resolution or contained in standing orders.

8. Rules of Debate

a Motions included in an agenda shall be considered in the order that they appear on the agenda unless the order is changed at the Chair's direction for reasons of expedience.

- b Subject to standing orders 5(a)–(e) above, a motion shall not be considered unless it has been proposed and seconded.
- c Subject to standing order 7(b)(iii) above, a motion included in an agenda not moved by the Councillor who tabled it, may be treated as withdrawn.
- d A motion to amend an original or substantive motion shall not be considered unless proper notice has been given after the original or substantive motion has been seconded and notice of such amendment, shall, if required by the Chair, be reduced to writing and handed to the Chair who shall determine the order in which they are considered.
- e A Councillor may move amendments to his own motion. If a motion has already been seconded, an amendment to it shall be with the consent of the seconder.
- f Any amendment to a motion shall be either:
 - i. to leave out words;
 - ii. to add words;
 - iii. to leave out words and add other words.
- g A proposed and not carried amendment to a motion shall not have the effect of rescinding the original or substantive motion under consideration.
- h Only one amendment shall be moved and debated at a time, the order of which shall be directed by the Chair. No further amendment to a motion shall be moved until the previous amendment has been disposed of.
- i Subject to Standing Order 5(h) above, one or more amendments may be discussed together if the Chair considers this expedient but shall be voted upon separately.
- j Pursuant to standing order 5(h) above, the number of amendments to an original or substantive motion, which may be moved by a Councillor, is limited to one.
- k If an amendment is not carried, other amendments shall be moved in the order directed by the Chair.
- If an amendment is carried, the original motion, as amended, shall take the place of the original motion and shall become the substantive motion upon which any further amendment may be moved.
- m The mover of a motion or the mover of an amendment shall have a right of reply, not exceeding 3 minutes.
- n Where a series of amendments to an original motion are carried, the mover of the original motion shall have a right of reply in respect of the substantive motion at the very end of debate and immediately before it is put to the vote.
- o Subject to standing orders 8 (m) and (n) above, a Councillor may not speak further in respect of any one motion except to speak once on an amendment moved by another Councillor or to make a point of order or to give a personal explanation.
- p During the debate of a motion, a Councillor may interrupt only on a point of order or a personal explanation and the Councillor who was interrupted shall stop speaking. A Councillor raising a point of order shall identify the standing order which he considers has been breached or specify the irregularity in the meeting he is concerned by.
- q A point of order shall be decided by the Chair and his decision shall be final.
- r With the consent of the seconder and/or of the meeting, a motion or amendment may be withdrawn by the proposer. A Councillor shall not speak upon the said motion or amendment unless permission for the withdrawal of the motion or amendment has been refused.
- s Subject to standing order 8(o) above, when a Councillor's motion is under debate no other motion shall be moved except:
 - i. to amend the motion;
 - ii. to proceed to the next business;
 - iii. to adjourn the debate;

- iv. to put the motion to a vote;
- v. to ask a person to be silent or for him to leave the meeting;
- vi. to refer a motion to a committee or sub-committee for consideration;
- vii. to exclude the public and press;
- viii. to adjourn the meeting;
- ix. To suspend any standing order, except those which are mandatory.
- In respect of standing order 8 (s)(iv) above, the Chair shall first be satisfied that the motion has been sufficiently debated before being put to the vote. The Chair shall call upon the mover of the motion under debate to exercise or waive his right of reply and shall put the motion to the vote after that right has been exercised or waived. The adjournment of a debate or of the meeting shall not prejudice the mover's right of reply at the resumption.

9. Code of Conduct (England)

See also standing orders 1(v)-(w) above

All Councillors shall observe the code of conduct adopted by the Council.

- a All Councillors shall undertake training in the code of conduct within 6 months of the delivery of their Declaration of Acceptance of Office.
- b It is a criminal offence for a member to participate and vote at a meeting on a matter which he / she is deemed to have a disclosable pecuniary interest. If a member is unsure as to whether they hold a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter they should first seek advice from the Executive Officer well in advance of the meeting. If they feel they have a disclosable pecuniary interest then the Council will have to approve a dispensation prior to participating in the item at the meeting. Details of the dispensation will be recorded in the minutes.
- c Where a member has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter he / she will leave the room whilst the matter is being discussed unless they have been given a dispensation as per 9(b).

10. Questions

- a A Councillor may seek an answer to a question concerning any business of the Council provided 5 clear days' notice of the question has been given to the Proper Officer.
- b Every question shall be put and answered without discussion.

11. Minutes

- a If a copy of the draft minutes of a preceding meeting has been circulated to Councillors no later than the day of service of the summons to attend the scheduled meeting they shall be taken as read.
- b No discussion of the draft minutes of a preceding meeting shall take place except in relation to their accuracy. A motion to correct an inaccuracy in the minutes shall be raised in accordance with standing order 6(a)(iv) above.
- c Minutes, including any amendment to correct their accuracy, shall be confirmed by resolution and shall be signed by the Chair of the meeting and stand as an accurate record of the meeting to which the minutes relate.
- d If the Chair of the meeting does not consider the minutes to be an accurate record of the meeting to which they relate, he shall sign the minutes and include a paragraph in the following terms or to the same effect:

"The Chair of this meeting does not believe that the minutes of the meeting of the [Full Council OR [] Committee] held on [date] in respect of [item] were a correct record but his view was not upheld by the majority of the [Full Council OR [] Committee] and the minutes are confirmed as an accurate record of the proceedings."

e Upon a resolution which confirms the accuracy of the minutes of a meeting, any previous draft minutes or recordings of the meeting shall be destroyed.

12. Disorderly Conduct

- a No person shall obstruct the transaction of business at a meeting or behave offensively or improperly.
- b If, in the opinion of the Chair, there has been a breach of standing order 12(a) above, the Chair shall express that opinion and thereafter any Councillor (including the Chair) may move that the person be silenced or excluded from the meeting, and the motion, if seconded, shall be put forthwith and without discussion.
- If a resolution made in accordance with standing order 12(b) above, is disobeyed, the Chair may take such further steps as may reasonably be necessary to enforce it and/or he may adjourn the meeting.

13. Rescission of Previous Resolutions

- a A resolution (whether affirmative or negative) of the Council shall not be reversed within 6 months except either by a special motion, the written notice whereof bears the names of at least two-thirds of the members of the Council, or committee or by a motion moved in pursuance of the report or recommendation of a committee.
- b When a special motion or any other motion moved pursuant to standing order 13(a) above has been disposed of, no similar motion may be moved within a further 6 months.

14. Voting on Appointments

a Where more than 2 persons have been nominated for a position to be filled by the Council and none of those persons has received an absolute majority of votes in their favour, the name of the person having the least number of votes shall be struck off the list and a fresh vote taken. This process shall continue until a majority of votes is given in favour of one person. Any tie may be settled by the Chair's casting vote.

15. Expenditure

- a Any expenditure incurred by the Council shall be in accordance with the Council's Financial Regulations.
- b The Council's financial regulations shall be reviewed once a year.
- The Council's financial regulations may make provision for the authorisation of the payment of money in exercise of any of the Council's functions to be delegated to a committee, sub-committee or to an employee.

16. Execution of Legal Deeds

See also standing order 6(a)(xvi) above

- a A legal deed shall not be executed on behalf of the Council unless the same has been authorised by a resolution.
- b In accordance with a resolution made under standing order 16(a) above, any two members of the Council, may sign, on behalf of the Council, any deed required by law and the Proper Officer shall witness their signatures.

17. Committees

See also standing order 1 above

- a The Council may, at its annual meeting, appoint standing committees and may at any other time appoint such other committees as may be necessary, and:
 - i. shall determine their terms of reference;
 - ii. may permit committees to determine the dates of their meetings;
 - iii. shall appoint and determine the term of office of Councillor or non-Councillor members of such a committee (unless it is a committee which regulates and controls the finances of the Council);
 - iv. may in accordance with standing orders, dissolve a committee at any time.

18. Sub Committees

See also standing order 1 above

a Unless there is a Council resolution to the contrary, every committee may appoint a subcommittee whose terms of reference and members shall be determined by resolution of the committee

19. Working Groups

See also standing order 1 above

- a The Council or committees may appoint Working Groups comprised of a number of Councillors and non-councillors.
- b Working Groups and any sub-Working Group may consist wholly of persons who are noncouncillors.
- c Officers will not generally be required to attend Working Groups unless deemed necessary.
- d Working Groups only have power to investigate and report, unless otherwise delegated.

20. Accounts and Financial Statements

- a All payments by the Council shall be authorised, approved and paid in accordance with the Council's Financial Regulations, which shall be reviewed at least annually.
- b The Responsible Financial Officer shall supply to each Councillor as soon as practicable after 31 March, 30 June, 30 September and 31 January in each year a statement summarising the Council's receipts and payments for each quarter and the balances held at the end of a quarter. This statement should include a comparison with the budget for the financial year. A Financial Statement prepared on the appropriate accounting basis (receipts and payments, or income and expenditure) for a year to 31 March shall be presented to each Councillor before the end of the following month of May. The Statement of Accounts of the Council (which is subject to external audit), including the annual governance statement, shall be presented to Council for formal

21. Estimates / Precepts

- The Council shall approve written estimates for the coming financial year at its meeting before the end of January.
- b Any committee desiring to incur expenditure shall give the Proper Officer a written estimate of the expenditure recommended for the coming year no later than the 30th September.

22. Canvassing of and Recommendations by Councillors

- a Canvassing Councillors or the members of a committee or sub-committee, directly or indirectly, for appointment to or by the Council shall disqualify the candidate from such an appointment. The Proper Officer shall disclose the requirements of this standing order to every candidate.
- b A Councillor or a member of a committee or sub-committee shall not solicit a person for appointment to or by the Council or recommend a person for such appointment or for promotion; but, nevertheless, any such person may give a written testimonial of a candidate's ability, experience or character for submission to the Council with an application for appointment.
- c This standing order shall apply to tenders as if the person making the tender were a candidate for an appointment.

23. Inspection of Documents

a Subject to standing orders to the contrary or in respect of matters which are confidential, a Councillor may, for the purpose of his official duties (but not otherwise), inspect any document in the possession of the Council or a committee or a sub-committee, and request a copy for the same purpose. The minutes of meetings of the Council, its committees or sub-committees shall be available for inspection by Councillors.

24. Unauthorised Activities

- a Unless authorised by a resolution, no individual Councillor shall in the name or on behalf of the Council, a committee or a sub-committee:
 - i. inspect any land and/or premises which the Council has a right or duty to inspect; or
 - ii. issue orders, instructions or directions.

25. Confidential Business

- a Councillors and employees shall not disclose information given in confidence or which they believe, or ought to be aware is of a confidential nature.
- b A Councillor in breach of the provisions of standing order 25(a) above may be removed from a committee or a sub-committee by a resolution of the Council.

26. General Power of Competence

a The General Power of Competence (GPC) allows eligible local Councils "the power to do anything that individuals generally may do" as long as they don't break other laws. This is the power of "first resort".

Eligibility criteria

Two thirds of the Council must be elected (even if the election was not contested). For Fleet Town Council this is 12 members.

The Executive Officer must hold the CiLCA qualification, including the GPC qualification, or be prepared to acquire the qualification within one year.

b The Council is then required to revisit that decision and make a new resolution at every 'relevant' annual meeting of the Council to confirm that it still meets the criteria (if it does). (i.e. a 'relevant' annual meeting is the annual meeting of the Council after the ordinary election that normally take place every four years).

27. Matters Affecting Council Employees

- a If a meeting considers any matter personal to a Council employee, it shall not be considered until the Council OR the establishment committee has decided whether or not the press and public shall be excluded pursuant to standing order 1(c) above.
- b Subject to the Council's policy regarding absences from work, the Council's most senior employee shall notify the Chair, in their absence, the Vice-Chair of any absence occasioned by illness or urgency and that person shall report such absence to the Council at its next meeting if the absence is for more than 5 days.
- c The Chair of the Council and the Chair of Establishment Committee shall in accordance with the Councils Appraisals system conduct a review of the performance and/or appraisal of the Executive Officer and shall keep a written record of it. The review and/or appraisal shall be reported back and shall be subject to approval by resolution by Policy and Finance Committee.
- d Subject to the Council's policy regarding the handling of grievance matters, the Council's most senior employee (or other employees) shall contact the Chair or in their absence, the Vice-Chair in respect of an informal or formal grievance matter, and this matter shall be reported back and progressed by resolution of Establishment Committee
- e Subject to the Council's policy regarding the handling of grievance and disciplinary matters, if an informal or formal grievance matter raised by the Executive Officer relates to the Chair or Vice-Chair of the Finance and Policy committee, this shall be communicated to another member of the Finance and Policy committee, which shall be reported back and progressed by resolution of the council.
- Any persons responsible for all or part of the management of Council employees shall keep written records of all meetings relating to their performance, and capabilities, grievance and disciplinary matters.
- g The Council shall keep written records relating to employees secure. All paper records shall be secured under lock and electronic records shall be password protected.
- h Records documenting reasons for an employee's absence due to ill health or details of a medical condition shall be made available only to those persons with responsibility for the same.
- Only persons with line management responsibilities shall have access to employee records referred to in standing orders 27(g) and (h) above if so justified.
- j Access and means of access by keys and/or computer passwords to records of employment referred to in standing orders 27(g) and (h) above shall be provided only to the Executive Officer and/or the Chair of the Council OR the Chair of the Policy and Finance committee.

28. Responsibilities to Provide Information

See also standing order 29

a In accordance with freedom of information legislation, the Council shall publish information in accordance with its publication scheme and respond to requests for information held by the Council.

[If gross annual income or expenditure (whichever is the higher) exceeds £200,000] The Council, shall publish information in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government (Transparency Requirements) (England) Regulations 2015.

29. Management of Information

See also standing order 30

- a The Council shall have in place and keep under review, technical and organisational measures to keep secure information (including personal data) which it holds in paper and electronic form. Such arrangements shall include deciding who has access to personal data and encryption of personal data.
- b The Council shall have in place, and keep under review, policies for the retention and safe destruction of all information (including personal data) which it holds in paper and electronic form. The Council's retention policy shall confirm the period for which information (including personal data) shall be retained or if this is not possible the criteria used to determine that period (e.g. the Limitation Act 1980).
- c The agenda, papers that support the agenda and the minutes of a meeting shall not disclose or otherwise undermine confidential information or personal data without legal justification.
- d Councillors, staff, the Council's contractors and agents shall not disclose confidential information or personal data without legal justification.

30. Responsibilities Under Data Protection Legislation

(Below is not an exclusive list). See also standing order 29.

- a The Council shall have policies and procedures in place to respond to an individual exercising statutory rights concerning his personal data.
- b The Council shall have a written policy in place for responding to and managing a personal data breach.
- c The Council shall keep a record of all personal data breaches comprising the facts relating to the personal data breach, its effects and the remedial action taken.
- d The Council shall ensure that information communicated in its privacy notice(s) is in an easily accessible and available form and kept up to date.
- e The Council shall maintain a written record of its processing activities.

31. Freedom of Information Act 2000

- a All requests for information held by the Council shall be processed in accordance with the Council's policy in respect of handling requests under the Freedom of Information Act 2000.
- b Correspondence from, and notices served by, the Information Commissioner shall be referred by the Proper Officer to the chair of the Finance and Policy committee. The said committee shall have the power to do anything to facilitate compliance with the Freedom of Information Act 2000 including exercising the powers of the Proper Officer in respect of Freedom of Information

32. Relations with the Press / Media

- a All requests from the press or other media for an oral or written statement or comment from the Council shall be processed in accordance with the Council's policy in respect of dealing with the press and/or other media.
- b In accordance with the Council's policy in respect to dealing with the press and/or other media, councillors shall not, in their official capacity, provide oral or written statements or written articles to the press or other media.

33. Liaison with District and County Councillors

- a An invitation to attend a meeting of the Council shall be sent electronically, together with the agenda, to the Councillors of the District or County Council representing its electoral wards.
- b Unless the Council otherwise orders, a copy of each letter sent to the District or County Council shall be sent electronically to the District or County Councillor representing its electoral ward.
- c District and County Councillors may participate in Council meetings at the discretion of the Chair.

34. Financial Matters

- a The Council shall consider and approve Financial Regulations drawn up by the Responsible Financial Officer, which shall include detailed arrangements in respect of the following:
 - i. the accounting records and systems of internal control;
 - ii. the assessment and management of financial risks faced by the Council;
 - iii. the work of the Internal Auditor and the receipt of regular reports from the Internal Auditor, which shall be required at least annually:
 - iv. the inspection and copying by Councillors and local electors of the Council's accounts and/or orders of payments;
 - v. whether contracts with an estimated value below £25,000 excluding VAT due to special circumstances are exempt from a tendering process or procurement exercise.
- b Financial regulations shall be reviewed regularly and at least annually for fitness of purpose.
- c A public contract regulated by the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 with an estimated value in excess of £30,000 including VAT but less than the relevant thresholds in standing order 34(f) is subject to Regulations 109-114 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 which include a requirement on the Council to advertise the contract opportunity on the Contracts Finder website regardless of what other means it uses to advertise the opportunity.
- d Subject to additional requirements in the financial regulations of the Council, the tender process for contracts for the supply of goods, materials, services or the execution of works shall include, as a minimum, the following steps:
 - i. a specification for the goods, materials, services or the execution of works shall be drawn up:
 - ii. an invitation to tender shall be drawn up to confirm (i) the Council's specification (ii) the time, date and address for the submission of tenders (iii) the date of the Council's written response to the tender and (iv) the prohibition on prospective contractors contacting councillors or staff to encourage or support their tender outside the prescribed process;
 - iii. the invitation to tender shall be advertised in a local newspaper and in any other manner that is appropriate;

- iv. tenders are to be submitted in writing in a sealed marked envelope addressed to the Proper Officer;
- v. tenders shall be opened by the Proper Officer or other duly appointed person in the presence of at least one councillor after the deadline for submission of tenders has passed;
- vi. tenders are to be reported to and considered by the appropriate meeting of the Council or a committee or sub-committee with delegated responsibility.
- e Neither the Council, nor a committee or a sub-committee with delegated responsibility for considering tenders, is bound to accept the lowest value tender.
- f. A public contract regulated by the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 with an estimated value in excess of £214,904 for a public service or supply contract or in excess of £5,372,609 for a public works contract (or other thresholds determined by the European Commission every two years and published in the Official Journal of the European Union (OJEU)) shall comply with the relevant procurement procedures and other requirements in the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 which include advertising the contract opportunity on the Contracts Finder and Find A Tender websites.
- g. Every contract shall comply with these financial regulations, and no exceptions shall be made otherwise than in an emergency provided that this regulation need not apply to contracts which relate to items (i) to (vi) below:
 - i. for the supply of gas, electricity, water, sewerage and telephone services;
 - ii. for specialist services such as are provided by legal professionals acting in disputes;
 - iii. for work to be executed or goods or materials to be supplied which consist of repairs to or parts for existing machinery or equipment or plant;
 - iv. for work to be executed or goods or materials to be supplied which constitute an extension of an existing contract by the council;
 - v. for additional audit work of the external auditor up to an estimated value of £500 (in excess of this sum the Executive Officer / RFO shall act after consultation with the Chairman and Vice Chairman of council); and
 - vi. for goods or materials proposed to be purchased which are proprietary articles and / or are only sold at a fixed price.

35. Allegations of Breaches of the Code of Conduct

a All allegations of breaches of the Code of Conduct will be forwarded to the Monitoring Officer to investigate and deal with the complaint.

36. Variation, Revocation and Suspension of Standing Orders

- a Any or every part of the standing orders, except those which are **mandatory by law**, which are highlighted in bold, may be suspended by resolution of at least two-thirds of the councillors at a meeting in relation to any specific item of business.
- b A motion to permanently add to or to vary or to revoke one or more of the Council's Standing Orders not mandatory by law shall not be carried unless two-thirds of the councillors at a meeting of the Council vote in favour of the same.

37. Standing Orders to be Given to Councillors

a The Proper Officer shall provide a copy of the Council's Standing Orders to a Councillor upon delivery of his declaration of acceptance of office.

38. Delegation and Terms of Reference to the Planning Committee

- a To consider and respond to all applications for planning permission and planning appeals referred to Town Council by Local Planning Authorities;
- b To consider all matters relating to Listed Building Consents, Buildings of Special Architectural Interest, Historic Buildings and the Conservation Areas;
- c To identify, comment upon, and refer to the relevant authorities any matters considered to be in breach of planning permission;
- d To consider and comment on all planning matters relating to the Town of Fleet and advise the District and Town Council as necessary;
- e To comment upon and monitor Tree Applications, Tree Preservation Orders and to seek approval for further TPOs if deemed necessary;
- f To commit to engage with residents and developers for pre-application consultation;
- g To actively promote the needs of the Town for s106 contributions;
- h To consider and comment on all planning policy matters relating to the town of Fleet and provide recommendations for report to the Town Council;
- i To respond to all relevant consultation documents relating to planning policy and associated matters:
- j Facilitate the development of a Neighbourhood Plan for approval by the whole council and review at least every five years.

39. Delegation and Terms of Reference to Policy and Finance Committee

- a To regulate, manage and control the finance and resources of the Town Council, including the recommendation to Town Council of the annual budgets and precept within the Council's Financial Regulations;
- b To review the expenditure on capital schemes and all budgets set by the Council;
- c To review the asset register and make recommendations to Council for amending the register;
- d To provide guidance to Committees and Council on overall levels of income and expenditure, and the financial implication of its policies;
- e To ensure that an adequate and effective system of internal control is in place to secure the integrity of finances and any other information:
- f To ensure the preservation of probity and good financial and other practices within the Council;
- g To consider and take appropriate action on all reports arising from both internal and external auditors;
- h On the recommendation of the Risk Working Group, to take steps to identify and update key risks facing the Council, and to recommend to council appropriate measures to avoid, reduce or control those risks or their consequences including the provision of insurance cover;
- i To review quarterly performance against budget and take any necessary action;
- To consider and where appropriate, authorise any requests for supplementary expenditure from spending committees, providing it falls within the overall approved Council budget and excluding General Reserves which must be authorised by Council;
- k To manage the central administration budget;
- To agree grants to organisations making a contribution to the local community in accordance with Grants Policy;

m To keep the Council's policies and procedures under review in accordance with the Councils Policy timetable and adopt all new policies as and when required.

40. Delegation and Terms of Reference to Recreation Leisure and Amenities Committee

- a Oversee the management and improvement of the Council's recreational facilities;
- b To oversee the management of Fleet Cemetery;
- c Agree and monitor contracts for the maintenance of the Council's facilities;
- d Recommend fees for the use of the Council's facilities:
- e Oversee the maintenance of recreation grounds (Including children's play areas), recreational and amenity areas;
- f Review regular inspection of recreation ground equipment by an outside agency;
- g To consult with interest groups and Fleet residents about matters within the committee's remit;
- h To approve first time event applications.

41. Delegation to the Establishment Committee

- a To set the level of staff resources together with matters relating to terms and conditions of employment, and level of salary within budgetary limits and guidelines;
- b To ensure the Council complies with all legislative requirements relating to the employment of staff:
 - i. To advertise, interview and negotiate acceptable terms and conditions and
 - ii. make recommendations to employ the Senior Officer positions including Executive Officer and Senior Line Managers. For the sake of clarity all other positions shall be appointed by the Executive Officer or the Harlington General Manager as appropriate in accordance with the staffing resources, terms and conditions and salary levels determined by the Policy and Finance Committee and within budgetary provision;
- c All members of the Establishment Committee must be members of the Town Council;
 - i. The maximum number of this committee shall be 8, including ex-officio members, so that there remains a pool of other councillors from whom 3 can be selected for any employment appeal hearing;
- d To hear and resolve Grievance and Disciplinary hearing appeals;
- e To agree annual bonuses in line with Council policy and contracts of employment;
- f To recommend annual pay reviews to be incorporated into annual budgets;
- g To develop policies related to the employment of staff.

42. Delegation to a Disciplinary Panel

a Comprising three members of the Establishment Committee, to hear and resolve Disciplinary matters which may include sanctions up to dismissal of staff.

43. Delegation to an Appeals Panel

a Comprising three members of the Establishment Committee not involved in the Disciplinary Panel, to hear and resolve appeals regarding Disciplinary Panel decisions.

44. Delegation to the Executive Officer

- a To act as the Councils Proper Officer wherever referred to;
- b Power to spend all Council Budgets, and to delegate these to appropriate staff, within the limitations of the Council's Financial Regulations;
- c Responsibility to manage all those employees who undertake Town Council functions and to oversee the management of The Harlington;
- d Responsibility for the day to day management of The Councils facilities, finances and assets;
- e Overall responsibility for Health and Safety of the Council's facilities including The Harlington and Ancells Farm Community Centre;
- f To make appropriate Grant Applications to support the Councils Capital programme and service delivery:
- g To appoint all employees who carry out the Town Council function save for Senior Line Managers;
- h To deal with all Freedom of information Act requests in accordance with Legislation and Council Policy;
- i Grant permission for event applications in line with Council Policy where it is a repeat application or a minor event:
- j Power to grant block dispensations as per item 9 Code of Conduct.

45. Delegation to The Harlington and Ancells Farm Community Centre General Manager

- a Responsibility to appoint and manage employees who carry out The Harlington and Ancells Farm Community Centre (as opposed to the Town Council) function;
- b Day to day responsibility for the management and implementation for the Health and Safety of The Harlington and Ancells Farm Community Centre Facilities.

46. Councillor Training

a All new Town Councillors shall undertake training provided by the Hampshire Association of Local Councils, or a similar body, appropriate to their role as a new Councillor within 6 months of signing the Declaration of Acceptance of Office.

Name	Job	Training	Provider	Completed	Cost
Charlotte Benham	Projects Officer	Fire Safety Awareness & Warden Duties	Bright Safe	20/01/2025	0001
Charlotte Benham	Projects Officer	Health and safety awareness	Bright Safe	20/01/2025	
Charlotte Benham	Projects Officer	Manual Handling Awareness		20/01/2025	
Charlotte Benham	Projects Officer			20/01/2025	
Charlotte Benham Projects Officer Working at height		Bright Safe	20/01/2025		
Charlotte Benham	Projects Officer	Duty to Manage Asbestos	NATAS	19/02/2025	£60
Charlotte Soane	Box Office	How to prevent sexual harassment	Bright hr	29/01/2025	
Karen Godfrey	Ancells Manager	Fire Safety Awareness & Warden Duties	Bright Safe	06/02/2025	
Karen Godfrey	Ancells Manager	Hazardous Substances (COSHH)	Bright Safe	11/02/2025	
Karen Godfrey	Ancells Manager	How to prevent sexual harassment	Bright hr	03/02/2025	
Karen Godfrey	Ancells Manager	Legionella awareness	Bright Safe	06/02/2025	
Karen Godfrey	Ancells Manager	Lone working	Bright Safe	11/02/2025	
Karen Godfrey	Ancells Manager	Manual Handling Awareness	Bright Safe	21/01/2025	
Karen Godfrey	Karen Godfrey Ancells Manager Cyber Security		Bright Safe	21/01/2025	
Karen Godfrey	Ancells Manager	Understanding GDPR	Bright HR	14/02/2025	
Louise Rogers	Admin Officer	Hazardous Substances (COSHH)	Bright HR	15/01/2025	
Rita Tong	Executive Officer	Electrical safety awareness	Bright Safe	20/01/2025	
Rita Tong	Executive Officer	Equality at work: intro to UK discrimination laws	Bright HR	20/01/2025	
Rita Tong	Executive Officer	Working at height	Bright Safe	20/01/2025	
Rita Tong	Executive Officer	Duty to Manage Asbestos	NATAS	19/02/2025	£60
Rodney Marshall	Senior Duty Manager	Electrical safety awareness	Bright Safe	13/01/2025	
Rodney Marshall	Senior Duty Manager	Fire resistance in buildings	Bright Safe	14/01/2025	
Rodney Marshall	Senior Duty Manager	Fire Safety Awareness & Warden Duties	Bright Safe	14/01/2025	
Rodney Marshall	Senior Duty Manager	Health and safety awareness	Bright Safe	13/01/2025	
Rodney Marshall	Senior Duty Manager	Lone working	Bright Safe	14/01/2025	ļ
Rodney Marshall	Senior Duty Manager	Noise awareness	Bright Safe	14/01/2025	
Rodney Marshall	Senior Duty Manager	Working at height	Bright Safe	14/01/2025	
Ruairi McNulty	Tech Manager	Health and safety awareness	Bright Safe	14/01/2025	
Ruairi McNulty	Tech Manager	Lone working	Bright Safe	29/01/2025	
Ruairi McNulty	Tech Manager	Working at height	Bright Safe	29/01/2025	
Ruari McNulty	Tech Manager	Electrical safety awareness	Bright Safe	14/01/2025	
Ruari McNulty	Tech Manager	Manual Handling Awareness	Bright Safe	14/01/2025	
Ruari McNulty	Tech Manager	Understanding GDPR	Bright Safe	14/01/2025	
Sarah McKibbin	Duty Manager	Electrical safety awareness	Bright Safe	13/01/2025	
Sarah McKibbin	Duty Manager	Fire resistance in buildings	Bright Safe	16/01/2025	
Sarah McKibbin	Duty Manager	Fire Safety Awareness & Warden Duties	Bright Safe	16/01/2025	
Sarah McKibbin	Duty Manager	Working at height	Bright Safe	16/01/2025	
Sarah Moore	Admin Manager	Antimoney laundering	Bright Safe	14/01/2025	
Sarah Moore	Admin Manager	Asbestos Awareness	Bright Safe	14/01/2025	
Sarah Moore	Admin Manager	Driving for business	Bright Safe	14/01/2025	
Sarah Moore	Admin Manager	Electrical safety awareness	Bright Safe	14/01/2025 14/01/2025	
	Sarah Moore Admin Manager Equality at work: intro to UK discr		Bright HR	15/01/2025	
Sarah Moore Sarah Moore	Admin Manager	Fire resistance in buildings Fire Safety Awareness & Warden Duties	Bright Safe Bright Safe	15/01/2025	
Sarah Moore	Admin Manager		Bright Safe	15/01/2025	
Sarah Moore	·		Bright Safe	27/01/2025	
Sarah Moore	Admin Manager	Manual Handling Awareness	Bright Safe	15/01/2025	
Sarah Moore	Admin Manager	Noise awareness	Bright Safe	27/01/2025	
Sarah Moore	Admin Manager	Preparing method statements	Bright Safe	15/01/2025	
Sarah Moore	Admin Manager	Risk Assessment Awareness	Bright Safe	27/01/2025	
Sarah Moore	Admin Manager	Working at height	Bright Safe	27/01/2025	
Sarah Moore	Admin Manager	Duty to Manage Asbestos	NATAS	18/02/2025	£60
Sian	Cemetery	How to prevent sexual harassment	Bright hr	30/01/2025	
Sian	Cemetery	Lone working	Bright Safe	30/01/2025	
Sian	Cemetery	Manual Handling Awareness	Bright Safe	30/01/2025	
Sian	Cemetery	Mental Health Awareness	Bright HR	30/01/2025	
Sian	Cemetery	Cyber security	Bright HR	30/01/2025	
Sam Jolliffe	Duty Manager	Asbestos awareness	Bright Safe	13/02/2025	
Sam Jolliffe	Duty Manager	Hazardous Substances (COSHH)	Bright Safe	13/02/2025	
Sam Jolliffe	Duty Manager	Cyber security	Bright HR	05/02/2025	
Sam Jolliffe	Duty Manager	Electrical safety awareness	Bright Safe	06/02/2025	
Sam Jolliffe	Duty Manager	Fire resistance in buildings	Bright Safe	06/02/2025	
Sam Jolliffe	Duty Manager	Fire Safety Awareness & Warden Duties	Bright Safe	06/02/2025	
Sam Jolliffe	Duty Manager	First Aid at Work		12/02/2025	
Sam Jolliffe	Duty Manager	Health and safety awareness	Bright Safe	04/02/2025	
Sam Jolliffe	Duty Manager	How to prevent sexual harassment	Bright HR	05/02/2025	
Sam Jolliffe	Duty Manager	Legionella awareness	Bright Safe	13/02/2025	
Sam Jolliffe	Duty Manager	Lone working	Bright Safe	06/02/2025	
Sam Jolliffe	Duty Manager	Manual Handling Awareness	Bright Safe	06/02/2025	
Samounite				05/02/2025	I
Sam Jolliffe	Duty Manager	Mental Health Awareness	Bright HR	03/02/2023	
	Duty Manager Duty Manager	Mental Health Awareness Noise awareness	Bright HR Bright Safe	13/02/2025	
Sam Jolliffe					
Sam Jolliffe Sam Jolliffe	Duty Manager	Noise awareness	Bright Safe	13/02/2025	

Status	Emp#	Name	Start Date	Job Title
New Starter	192	Libby Brewer	06/12/2024	Bar/FOH/Usher
New Starter	193	Samuel Jollliffe	20/01/2025	Duty Officer
Leaver	75	Kai Julian	30/12/2024	Duty Officer